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Executive Sum m ary 

Investigative A udit R eport 
Southern U niversity at B aton R ouge 

The follow ing sum m arizes the findings and recom m endations as well as m anagem ent's response 
that resulted from this investigation. D etailed inform ation relating to the findings and 
recom m endations m ay be found at the page num ber indicated. M anagem ent's response m ay be 
found at Attachm ent I. 

Em ployees and Non-W orking Students Receive 
W ork-Study Funds Intended for N eedy Students 

Finding 

Recom m endation: 

(Page 7) 

From January 1996 through M ay 1999, Financial Aid 
employees and student em ployees of the Financial Aid Offi ce 
used the nam es of 67 stu dents who did not actually work to 
generate $169,317 in paychecks through the Federal W ork- 
Study Program. Some of these 67 students (see Appendix) 
shared in the proceeds while others m ay have been unaware of 
the paychecks written in their nam es. To conceal that these 
students did not w ork, over 200 payroll docum ents were 
falsified and made part of University records. 

W e recom m end that the University review its Financial Aid and 
payroll procedures and im plem ent such policies and procedures 
that will ensure thai: 

(l) only those students that properly qualify for financial aid 
receive such assistance; 

(2) student employees are paid for hours aelually worked; 

(3) payroll records are properly reviewed; and 

(4) a proper separation of duties exists that will prevent 
employees who have authority to add and/or change 
payroll vouchers from receiving student paychecks. 

W e recom m end that m anagem ent for the University review the 
inform ation provided herein to determ ine whether additional 
instances of abuse of the Federal W ork-Study Program have 
occurred. In addition, the University should seek to recover all 
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funds paid to students who did not actually w ork the hours for 
which they w ere paid. Furtherm ore, we recom m end that lhc 
District Attorney for the N ineteenth Judicial District of 
Louisiana and the United States Attorney t'or the M iddle Dislricl 
of Louisiana review this inform ation and take appropriate legal 
action regarding possible violations of state and federal law s, to 
include seeking restitution. 

M anagem ent's R esponse: M anagem ent concurs with the finding. 

M s. EIIois Blount W as Paid $44,772 in Salary 
That She W as N ot Entitled to R eceive 

Finding: 

R ecom m endation: 

(Page 16) 

During the period April 1992 through February 2000, 
M s. Ellois Blount, form er Federal W ork-Study Coordinator for 
Southern University, was paid $44,772 for 3,379 hours in 
accum ulated leave that she had not earned. According to 
University policy, it w as M s. Blount's responsibility to initiate 
and com plete leave slip requests and the responsibility of her 
im m ediate supervisor, the director of the Financial Aid O ffice, 
to ensure that M s. Blount docum ented her leave taken. It was 
also the director's responsibility to approve M s. Blount's leave 
and to certify the accuracy of the employee's m onthly payroll. 
During the period w e exam ined, three individuals held the 
position of director, M s. Cynthia Tarver, M s. Barbara Shaffer, 
and M s. Debra Ephrom . A ll three failed to perform  their 
adm inistrative duties according to University policy directives. 

M anagem ent for Soulhern University should im plem ent policies 
and procedures to ensure all em ployee leave taken is accurately 
accounted for, recorded, and deducted from em ployee leave 
balances. M anagem ent should ensure that em ployees are not 
paid for tim e not worked when no available leave balance 
exists. By paying em ployees for tim e not worked when 
accum ulated  leave is not available, m anagem ent places the 
University in violation of Article 7, Section 14 of the Louisiana 
Constitution. In addition, the District Attorn ey for the 
N ineteenth Judicial District of Louisiana should review this 
inform ation and take appropriate legal action regarding these 
possible violations of state law , to include seeking restitution. 

M anagem ent's R esponse: M anagem ent concurs in part w ith the finding, ttow ever, 
m anagem ent states that the directors did not know ingly or 
intentionally certify incorrect payroll records. 
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E m ployees R eceived C ash From  Students 

Finding 

R ecom m endation: 

(Page 19) 

Former State Student Incentive Grant (SSIG) Coordinator, 
M s. Sharon Davis, and form er Financial Aid em ployee, 
M r. Darrel Lee, stated that they accepted cash from students. 
M s. Davis stated that during her tenur e as SSIG Coordinator, 
Septem ber 1992 to July 1998, she received an undeterm ined 
am ount of cash from  at least ten students and possibly as m any 
as 50 students. M r. Lee stated that 11 students gave him 
approximately $2,250 in cash in exchange for the SSIG gran t 
awards. In addition, M r. Lee stated that he applied for SSIG 
fun ds in the nam e of certain students w ithout their know ledge 
and that M s. Davis was aw are of this practice. 

W e recom m end that m anagem ent im plem ent policies and 
procedures to ensure that em ployees do not solicit or accept 
funds from students for doing that which they are being paid to 
do. Second, m anagem ent should review this inform ation to 
determ ine whether additional instances have occurred. 
M anagem ent should ensure that grants are awarded only in 
accordance with gr ant award regulations. Finally, we recom - 
m end that the District Attorn ey for the N ineteenth Judicial 
District of Louisiana and the United States Attorney for the 
M iddle District of Louisiana review this m atter and take 
appropriate legal action regarding these possible violations of 
state and federal laws, to include seeking restitution. 

M aoagem ent's Response: M anagem ent concurs w ith the finding and w ill reissue policies 
and procedur es to ensure that em ployees do not solicit or accept 
funds from students for the perform ance of their work duties. 
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B ackground and M ethodology 

Southern University is under the m anagem ent and supervision of the Southern University Board 
of Supervisors created by the Louisiana State Constitution of 1974. The Board is responsible for 
the m anagem ent and supervision of the institutions of higher education, statewide agricultural 
program s, and other program s that com prise the Southern  University System . The powers of the 
Board of Supervisors are subject to those vested by the Constitution to the Louisiana State Board 
of Regents. 

The O ffi ce of file Legislative Auditor received several allegations regarding the Financial Aid 
O ffi ce of Southern  University. One allegation indicated that students w ere receiving paychecks 
from the Federal W ork-Study Program for which they did not work. Southern University's 
Financial Aid Office is contracted w ith the U.S. Department of Education to ~,dm inister the 
Federal W ork-Study Program . 

The procedures perform ed during this investigative audit w ere designed to determ ine the 

propriety of this allegation and consisted of (1) interviewing present and former employees and 
students of the University; (2) interviewing other persons as appropriate; (3) examining selected 
documents and records of the University; (4) making inquiries and performing tests to the extent 
we considered necessary to achieve our purpose; and (5) reviewing applicable state and federal 
law s. 

W e acknow ledge the assistance provided this investigation by Southern University's lnterna 
Auditor, the Com ptroller's O ffice, Cam pus Police, and the Inform ation System s Departm ent. 

The results of our investigative audit are the findings and recom m endations herein 
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Findings and R ecom m endations 

EM PLO Y EES A N D N O N -W O R K IN G 
STUDENTS RECEIVE W O RK -STUDY 
FUN D S INTEN D ED FO R N EED Y 
STUD EN TS 

From January 1996 through M ay 1999, Financial Aid em ployees and student em ployees of 
the Financial Aid O ffi ce used the nam es of 67 students w ho did not actually w ork to 
generate $169,317 in paychecks through the Federal W ork-Study Program . Som e of these 
67 students (see Appendix) shared in the proceeds while others may have been unaware of 
the paychecks  w ritten in their nam es. To conceal that these students did not work, over 
200 payroll docum ents were falsified and m ade part of U niversity records. 

Program Description - The Federal W ork-Study Program  is a federally ftm ded program that 
allows a student to work and earn m oney to help pay for school. The University received an 
average of $1,000,000 to fund this program each year. The University established a low 
m axim um award to m ake this program available to as m any needy students as possible. For the 
last two fiscal years, the maximum award per student was $900 per semester; previously, the 
award w as $800 per sem ester. To be eligible for the progr am , students m ust apply for financial 
aid and m eet certain financial criteria, which is based on their expected fam ily contribution. 
Upon m eeting these criteria, students are given a W ork-Study award and ar e inform ed of the 
departm ent in which they are to w ork. 

Students participating in the W ork-Study program w ere paid through a system designed to 
ensure thal the: students were paid for the actual hours that they worked. This system included 
students recording their actual w ork hours on sign-in sheets, the preparation of payr oll vouchers, 
and the review and approval of supervisors and the W ork-Study program coordinator as follow s: 

Students recorded their actual w ork hours on sign-in sheets. 

Students sign-in sheets, once approved, were used by departm ent em ployees to 
prepare student payroll vouchers. 

Once the supervisor and departm ent head approved the payroll vouchers, they 
w ere forwarded to the Financial Aid O ffice. 

After receipt in the Financial Aid O ffice, the payroll vouchers were forwarded to 
the Inform ation System s Departm ent to be keypunched. 

The Federal W ork-Study program coordinator and her staff  corrected keypunch 
errors with direct access to the computerized payroll system . Once errors had 
been corrected, the Federal W ork-Study program coordinator gave her approval to 
generate the paychecks. 
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O ur investigation revealed that certain individuals of the W ork-Study section of the Financial 

Aid Office (M s. Ellois Blount, M r. Darrel Lee, M s. Sharon Davis, and M s. Sandra Perry) 
participated in a schem e calling for students, who did not w ork, to receive paychecks if they 
returned a portion of the paycheck to the employees. To accom plish this schem e, these 
individuals circmnvented the internal control system , prepared false docum ents

, and perform ed 
their duties in an im proper m anner, som etim es w orking in collusion w ith each other, as follows: 

2 

Financial Aid em ployees responsible for reviewing studenl financial records to 
determ ine eligibility, im properly approved ineligible participants. Ill addition, 

these individuals enlisted departm ent employees who w ere willing to carry non- 
working students on their student payrolls. 

Next, students w ere solicited into the program who w ere w illing to return  a 
portion of their unearn ed paychecks to the individuals in return for not having to 
w ork. 

Using computer access, these individuals set up students in file Federal W ork- 
Study Program . 

Then, falsified sign-in sheets and payroll vouchers w ere prepared and the payroll 
vouchers w ere sent to the Inform ation System s Departm ent to be keypunched. 

The Federal W ork-Study program coordinator gave approval to generate the 
student paychecks. 

The paychecks w ere then picked up from the Com ptroller's O ffice by one of these 
individuals. The individuals then gave instructions to the students to cash their 
paychecks and return the agreed-upon portion of the proceeds. In som e instances, 
however, students who w ere friends and/or relatives were not required to return a 
portion of the proceeds. In other instances, student checks m ay have been cashed 
or deposited without the student's knowledge. 
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Em ployees 
Solicited 
Students 

T H E  SC H E M E 

Using Com puter 
Set up Students 

Iv on the Federal 

W ork-Study 
Program 

Falsified Payroll 
Vouchers and 
Sign-in Sheets 

Sent Payroll 
Vouchers to 
Inform ation 
System s 

Departm ent to Be 

Gave Approval 
for W ork- 
Study 

Paychecks to 
Be G enerated 

Picked up 
Paychecks From 
Com ptroller's 

Offi ce 

Gave Students 
,.~  Instructions to 

Cash Their 
Paychecks 

Collected Cash 
From Students 

The non-w orking students" w ages w ere charged to the following University departm ents: 
Com m unity Service, Athletics, Intram ural, Engineering Technology, Financial Aid, and 
Com puter Science. 

The University employees involved, based on their own statem ents or the statem ents of others as 
detailed below , included M s. Elloise Blount, M r. D arrel Lee, M s. Sandra Perry, M s. Sharon 
Davis, M s. Shirley Alexis Bell, M r. Robert Jones, M r. M oses Dupre, and M r. Richard W ilson. 
In addition, tile nam es of 67 students w ere used as detailed in the appendix. 

M s. Ellois Blount - M s. Blount, former Financial Aid employee, w as the Federal W ork-Study 
program coordinator w ithin the Financial Aid Office during the period of our exam ination, 
spring sem ester January 1996 through spring sem ester M ay 1999. M s. Blount inform ed us and 

our invesli~,ation revealed that M s. Blount (l) recruited students who did not work, (2) instructed 
employees to add students who did not work to the payrolls, (3) created false payroll vouchers, 
and (4) collected cash from students. 
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M s. Blount staled that she recruited students who did not w ork. O ur investigalion revealed that 
M s. Blount recruited num erous studenls as detailed in the appendix. 

M s. Blounl added  non-w orking students to the payroll herself and instructed anolher em ployee to 
add non-working students to the payroll. Though procedures required payr oll vouchers, it was 
nol necessary to have a physical payroll voucher to create a paycheck. M s. Sharon [)avis, form er 
Financial Aid em ployee, stated that M s. Blount instructed her to add non-working students to the 
payroll through direcl access, thereby creating paychecks w ithout supporting payroll vouchers 
and/or sign-in sheets. However, in m ost instances, falsified payr oll vouchers w ere placed in 
University files effectively concealing that the students did not work. In addilion, M s. Blount 
stated that, after receipt by the Financial Aid O ffice, she added students to blank lines on 
approved payroll vouchers. 

11 
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M s. Blount stated that she recruited students who did not w ork. Our investigation revealed that 
M s. Blount recruited num erous students as detailed in the appendix. 

M s. Blount added non-working students to the payr oll herself and instru cted another employee to 
add non-w orking students to the payroll. Though procedures required payroll vouchers, it was 
not necessary to have a physical payroll voucher to create a paycheck. M s. Sharon Davis, form er 
Financial Aid em ployee, stated that M s. Blotm t instructed her to add non-working students to the 
payroll through direct access, thereby creating paychecks without supporting payroll vouchers 
and/or sign-in sheets. However, in m ost instances, falsified payroll vouchers were placed in 
University files effectively concealing that the students did not work. In addition, M s. Blount 
stated that, after leeeipt by the Financial Aid O ffi ce, she added students to blank lines on 
approved payroll vouchers. 
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M s. Blount prepared false payroll vouchers including non-w orking students and two of her 
relatives. M s. Blount stated that she prepared entire payr oll vouchers and subm itted the falsified 
vouchers to generate paychecks. M s. Blount identified 37 payr oll vouchers that she falsified 
totaling $33,083. 

According to Iris. Ellois Blount, som e of these falsified payr oll vouchers included M s. Candice 
Blount and M s. Zenolia Blount, her daughter and sister-in-law . M s. Candice and Zenolia 
Blount's wages w ere charged to m ultiple departm ents. Supervisors of those departm ents stated 
that M s. Candice Blount and M s. Zenolia Blount did not w ork. From M arch 1997 through 
M arch 1999, M s. Candice Blount received 33 paychecks totaling $12,091 and from January 1997 
through August 1998, M s. Zenolia Blount received  24 paychecks totaling $13,601. 

One student informed us that M s. Candice Blount mxanged for her (the student) to receive a $536 
W ork-Study paycheck for which she did no work. The agreem ent was that she would treat 
M s. Candicc and M s. Ellois Blount to dinner. The student estim ated that she spent 
approximately $2(10 at T. J. Ribs and Bennigan's restaurants from the proceeds of her W ork- 
Study paycheck. 

M s. Blount collected cash from the students she personally recruited . Four studenls inform ed us 
that they gave approximately $19,816 in cash directly to M s. Blount. In addition, M r. Darrel 
Lee, former Financial Aid employee, estimated he gave $10,640 in cash directly to M s. Blount, 
which he stated was her share of the am ount that he collected from the students he recru ited. 

11 
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M r. Darrel l,ee - Mr. Lee (1) recruited students who did not work, (2) instructed employees to 
add students who did not work to the payrolls, (3) received student paychecks, (4) created false 
payroll vouchers, and (5) collected cash from students. 

According to M r. Lee, som etim e in 1996, M s. Blount approached him about recruiting students 
with the idea that tbe students did not have to work if they returned a portion of their W ork- 
Study paychecks. M r. Lee stated that the general ride was that the students had to return  half of 
the paycheck proceeds. 

M r. Lee adm itted that he instructed M r. M oses Dupre, Departm ent of Athletics employee, to add 
non-working students to his payroll. Furtherm ore, he adm itted that he picked up these students' 
paychecks. In addition, M r. Lee identified 52 payroll vouchers that he and M s. Blount falsified 
totaling $45,776. M r. Lee identified 18 students that he personally recruited and from whom he 
collected approximately $18,433. He stated that of the $18,433 he collected, he kept $7,793 and 
gave M s. Ellois Blount the rem aining $10,640, which was her share. 

M s. Sandra Perry - Ms. Perry (1) collected cash from students, (2) negotiated students' 
paychecks, and (3) deposited students' paychecks into her personal bank account. M s. Sandra 
Perry was a student who worked for M s. Ellois Blount in the W ork-Study section of the 
Financial A id O ffice. Her duties included processing W ork-Study payroll vouchers. 

Tw o student,s identified M s. Perry as the individual who w ent with them to the bank where they 
follow ed her instructions to endorse and cash their W ork-Study paychecks. According to the 
students, M s. Perry gave the two students $100 each from their paycheck proceeds and kept the 
remaining $675. From another participant in the scheme, M s. Perry received 11 non-working 
students' paychecks totaling $5,052, which M s. Perry deposited into her personal bank account. 
Two of the stu dents interview ed, and whose paychecks M s. Perry deposited, stated they w ere 
unaware of the existence of the paychecks. 

Three of the 11 paychecks, totaling $1,880, were issued to M s. Perry's daughter, M s. Anntionette 
Perry. The payroll vouchers that created the three paychecks w ere from two departm ents. The 
departm ent's supervisors, Dr. Ibiba Dabipi, Head of Engineering Technology, and M r. Alvin 
A llen, Com puter Science employee, stated that their signatures on the payroll vouchers w ere 
forged and that M s. Anntionette Perry did not w ork the hours shown on the payroll vouchers. 

From O ctober 1996 through M arch 1999, M s. Sandra Pen-y received 40 W ork-Study paychecks 
made payable to her totaling $15,805. Of this am ount, $3,090 was charged to the Engineering 
Technology W ork-Study payroll. However, Dr. Dabipi stated that M s. Sandra Perry did not 
work in his department. The majority of her W ork-Study wages, $12,715, was charged to the 
Financial Aid O ffice. Three financiaI aid em ployees M s. Linda Carr, M s. Carolyn Brown 3am es, 
and M s. Oreather Lee stated that M s. Sandra Perry was frequently absent from w ork. Tw o of 
these employees concurred flaat once the m onthly W ork-Study payroll vouchers w ere com pleted, 
M s. Sandra Perry w ould rarely show up for w ork tmtil the next tim e the payroll vouchers were 
due. 
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M s. Sharon Davis - M s. Davis, former Financial Aid employee, (1) instructed employees to add 
sludenls who did not work to the student payroll, (2) created false sign-in sheets and falsified 
payroll vouchers, and (3) collected cash from a student. 

M s. Davis staled th at she transferred to the Federal W ork-Study Program in th e fall of 1995 
under the supervision of M s. Ellois Blount. She stated that, when she arrived, non-working 
sludenls w ere already being added to student payrolls. She explained that after a while she 
becam e com fortable w ith this process and that she added two non-working students. She 
confirm ed th at she requested  M r. Dupre to add tw o non-w orking students and she stated  that one 
of the two sludenIs gave her $20 to $30 from each paycheck. M s. Davis identified her 
handwriting and staled that she knowingly added non-working students to blank lines on payroll 
vouchers after they w ere received in the Financial Aid O ffice. In addition, she stated that she 
took sign-in sheels containing the nam e of a non-w orking student to M r. Dupre for him to 
approve, which he did. 

M r. Dupre, Departm ent of Athletics em ployee, stated that at the request of M s. Davis, he added  
two non-working students to his payr oll. The two students collectively received $9,432. One of 
these two students confirm ed that M s. Davis set her up on the W ork-Study payr oll and told her if 
anyone asked where she w orked she was supposed to tell them that she worked for M r. D upre in 
the Departm ent of Athletics. The student also stated she did not w ork and that she gave cash to 
M s. Davis frorn m ost of her 14 paychecks. 

M s. Shirley Alexis Bell - M s. Bell, former Financial Aid employee, (l) added students who did 
nol work, (2) created false payroll vouchers, (3) received student paychecks, and (4) added 
herself to the student payroll. 

M s. Bell added non-w orking students to the Engineering Technology W ork-Study payr oll. 
Dr. Dabipi stated that, during the fall of 1998 through the spring of 1999, M s. Bell prepared  11 
of his deparlm enl's W ork-Study payr oll vouchers. A ccording to Dr. Dabipi, these vouchers 
included the nam es of 12 non-w orking students. These 12 stu dents received paychecks totaling 
$14,889. According to Dr. Dabipi, M s. Bell picked up these paychecks. Twenty-seven of the 
paychecks totaling $10,362 were given to M r. Robert Jones and to M s. Sandra PetTy for them to 
negotiate. W e spoke w ith four of the 12 students, all of whom stated that they did not work. 

In addition, M s. Bell added herself to the W ork-Study payr oll and received $778 in W ork-Study 
paychecks. Records indicale that at the tim e she received the paychecks, she was a full-tim e 
em ployee of the University on leave without pay and was perform ing her student teaching at 
Scotlandville High School. Student teaching records indicate that her teaching hours w ere in 
direct conflict w ith the hours listed on the W ork-Study payr oll vouchers. 

M r. Robert ,Iones - Mr. Jones, a former W ork-Study student, (1) deposited students' paychecks 
into his pelsonal bank account, (2) recruited students who did not work, (3) received students' 
paychecks, and (4) collected cash from students. 
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M r. Jones cashed or deposited students' paychecks through his bank accounts and in som e 
instances, w ithout the students' know ledge. Records indicate that he negotiated 20 paychecks 
through his bank account totaling $6,860. Two students confirm ed that M r. Jones recruited them 
and accom panied them to the bank where they cashed one or m ore paychecks and gave him cash 
totaling $1,056. 

Another student recruited by M r. Jones stated that his paym ent to M r. Jones from two paychecks 
totaling $778 was to finance a "night on the town" for M r. Jones. The student estim ated he spent 
between $200 and $300 on drinks and gambling money for M r. Jones. 

M r. M oses Dupre - Mr. Dupree, Department of Athletics employee and supervisor, (1) falsified 
payroll vouchers and (2) added non-working students to payroll vouchers. 

M r. Dupree staled that he signed the nam es of M s. G lenda Rutledge, Departm ent of Athletics 
supervisor, and M r. M arino Casem , Departm ent of Athletics director, w ithout their perm ission to 
22 W ork-Study payroll vouchers that included one or m ore non-w orking students. 

He identified seven of the 22 payroll vouchers that w ere brought to him by either M s. Candice 
Blount or /','Is. Ellois Blount to approve, which he did. The payroll vouchers w ere for 
M s. Candice Blount and w ere for hours she did not w ork. He approved 30 student sign -in sheets 
for non-w orking students, tte identified 17 non-w orking students that he know ingly added to his 
payrolls who had combined paychecks of $39,812. M r. Dupre denied receiving any monies to 
add the non-w orking students to his student payr olls. 

M r. Richard W ilson - M r. W ilson, employee of the Department of Intramural, (1) falsified 
student sign-in sheets and payroll vouchers and (2) added non-working students to payroll 
vouchers. 
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M r. W ilson prepared and approved the payroll vouchers and student sign-in sheets in his 
departm ent, lie stated he approved 22 student sign-in sheets w ith know ledge that the students 
did not actually work. Furtherm ore, he stated that he prepared and approved 56 payroll vouchers 
where he personally added one or m ore non-working students. According to M r. W ilson, he 
added the non-w orking students at the request of M s. Ellois Blount. M s. Blount denied that she 
requested M r-. W ilson to add the non-working students. M r. W ilson identified 28 students who 
did not w ork and six other students about which he w as unsure as to whether they actually 
worked the hour's for which they were paid. W e confirm ed through other sources that three of 
the six students did not w ork. Therefore, 31 non-w orking students w ere included  on payroll 
vouchers by M r. W ilson. The paychecks of the 31 non-working students totaled $42,187. 

M r. W ilson filrther stated that he included, on his payroll vouchers, his nephew, M r. Bryan 
W ilson and his niece, M s. M ichelle W ilson. He claim ed M r. Bryan W ilson w orked and 
M s. M ichelle W ilson did not. M r. Bryan W illson received $1,694 and M s. M ichelle W ilson 
received $6,574 from the University as a result of these payr oll vouchers. 

N ONW ORKING STUDENTS W ERE ADDED TO THE COM M UNITY SERVICE 
PAYROLl, ~~1TIIOUT THE KNOW LEDGE OF SUPERVISOR 

The Baton Rouge Recreation and Parks Commission (BREC) contracted with Southern 
University to use student w orkers to tutor elem entary students at BREC's recreational centers. 
M s. M ary W eatherspoon, BREC supervisor', stated her signatur es had been forged on 41 W ork- 
Study payroll vouchers and 46 student sign-in sheets. She identified  29 students listed on her 
payroll vouchers who did not w ork for BREC. Fifte, en of the 29 students interviewed inform ed 
us that they did not work. 

By causing the University to pay student em ployees for hours that were not actually worked and 
receiving a portion of the proceeds of their pay, one or m ore of the above m entioned University 
employees and one or m ore of the students listed in the attached appendix m ay have violated the 
follow ing state and federal law s: 

R.S. 14:67, "Theft" 

R.S. 14:72, "Forgery" 

18 U.S.C. ~641, "Embezzlement and ']'heft" 

8 U.S.C. ~666, "Theft From Federal Programs 

Though the actions of the individuals listed in this report appear to substantiate the elem ents of 
the laws listed above, the actual determination as to whether individuals are subject to formal 
charge is at the discretion and determination of the district attorney and the United States 
Attorney. 

W e recom m end that the University review its Finan cial Aid and payroll procedures and 
im plem ent such policies and procedures that w ill ensure that: 
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(l) only those students that properly qualify for financial aid receive such assistance; 

(2) student employees are paid for hours actually worked; 

(3) payroll records are properly reviewed; and 

(4) a proper separation of duties exists lhat will prevent employees who have 
authority to add and/or change payroll vouchers from receiving student 
paychecks. 

W e recom m end that m anagem ent for the University review the inform ation provided herein to 
determ ine whether additional instances of abuse of the Federal W ork-Study Program have 
occurred. In addition, the University should seek to recover all funds paid to students who did 
not actually work the hours for which they w ere paid. 

Furtherm ore, w e recom m end that the District Attorn ey for the N ineteenth Judicial District of 
Louisiana and the United States Attorney for the M iddle District of Louisiana review this 
inform ation and take appropriate legal action regarding possible violations of state and federal 
law s, to include seeking restitution. 

M S. ELLO IS BLO UNT W AS PAID $44,772 
IN SALARY TH AT SH E W A S N O T 
EN TITLED TO  R ECEIV E 

D uring the period April 1992 through February 2000, M s. EIIois Blount, form er Federal 
W ork-Study Conrdinator for Southern University, was paid $44,772 for 3,379 hours in 
accum ulated leave thai she had not earned. A ccording to U niversity policy, it was 
M s. Blouat's responsibility to initiate and com plete leave slip requests and the 
responsibility of her im m ediate supervisor, the director of the Financial Aid O ffi ce, to 
ensure that M s. Blount docum ented her leave taken. It was also the director's 
responsibility to approve M s. Blount's leave and to certify the accuracy of the em ployee's 
m onthly payroll. D uring the period w e exam ined, three individuals held the position of 
director, M s. Cynthia Tarver, M s. Barbara Shaffer, and M s. Debra Ephrom . All three 
failed to perform their adm inistrative duties according to U niversity policy directives. 

University employees earn  annual and sick leave based on the hours w orked and accum ulate this 
leave at a rale which increases w ith the num ber of years of service. There is no lim it to the 
am ount of annual and sick leave an em ployee m ay accum ulate. W hen em ployees use leave, it is 
deducted from their accum ulated leave balance. 

From April 1992 through February 2000, em ployees of the Financial A id O ffice used tim ecards 
and a tim e clock to record their daily attendance. The m onthly payroll was prepared from these 
lim eeards. Daring this period, University payroll records indicate that M s. Blounl used 3,379 
m ore hours of leave than she had earn ed and accum ulated. Because all of her used leave w as not 
properly recorded and/or deducted from her leave balance, the University w as unaware that 
M s. Blount actually began a deficit leave balance in August 1995. Furtherm ore, the University 
was unaw are of M s. Blount's deficit leave balance when it advanced her 176 hours of leave in 
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June 1997. At that tim e, M s. Blount already had been paid for 1,964 hours of leave am ounting to 
$26,023, to which she w as not entitled. M s. Blount kept a negative leave balance for over four 
years because she continued to receive pay for unearned leave, she continued to m iss work, and 
her leave was not accurately recorded. 

Eleven Financial Aid Offi ce employees confirmed that M s. Blount's absenteeism was chronic 
for a num ber of years. The em ployees noted that M s. Blount's absences extended for m onths at 
a tim e. Em ployees stated that M s. Blount w as out for such an extended period that during a 
period of tim e tw o student w orkers actually operated the W ork-Study section. The em ployees 
stated that M s. Blount's absenteeism w as com m on know ledge. They further inform ed us that 
they questioned whether M s. Blount's accumulated leave was sufficient to cover her absences. 
In addition, they further questioned why M s. Bloun t was allow ed nbsences that appeared 
excessive. 

M s. Blounfs time exllressed in days: 
Days paid 
Days worked 
Days missed 

9-M onths 
in 1992 1993 1994 

197 
148 
49 

1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 Total 

260 260 260 262 256 253 135 0 
180 187 113 131 141 164 56 0 
80 73 147 131 115 89 79 0 

,883 

,120 
763 

Universily iecords indicate tbal M s. Blotml actually attended work durh~g 59.5% (or),120) of 
the 1,883 w orkdays from April 1992 through February 2000. 

M s. Blount's Time Exnressed in Hours 

9m onthsin 1992 
1993 
1994 
t995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 

Audited 
Beginning Ending 
Leave Leave Hours Not Le ave 
Balance Accrued at W ork Balance 

905 
767 
466 
219 
(739) 
1,562) 
2.412) 
2.840) 
3.376) 

254 
336 
336 
221 
228 
247 
287 
97 
(3) 

392 
637 
583 
1,180 
1,052 
1,097 
715 
634 
0 

767 
466 
219 
(739) 
(I.5621 
(2.412) 
(2.840) 
(3.376) 
{3,379) 

Unaudited 
Ending 
Leave 
Balance 

967 
921 
972 
400 
255 
74 
29 
6 
3 

Included in thc column "Flours Not at W ork" for 1997 is 176 hours of leave advanced hy the University in 
June 1997. In addition, M s, Blount was paid for 3 hours ofannl~al leave when she departed the University 
on February 28, 2000. 

From 1989 thr oug, h 1999, there were nine directives sent by University offi cials (including the 
President of the Southern University System , the System Director of Personnel, and the 
Chancellor for the Baton Rouge Campus) to University employees relating to payroll explaining 
the responsibility of the em ployee, supervisor, and departm ent head. These directives explained 
that the employee was to complete a request for leave (leave slip), that the immediate supervisor 
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was to ensure that the em ployee com pleted this leave slip, and that the departm ent head's 
signature indicated that he ol- she w ould be held accountable. 

The prim ary reason why M s. Blount's leave balance w as not accurate w as because M s. Blount 
did nol com plete leave slip form s for all her leave taken. In addition, her im m ediate supervisors, 
the successive directors of the Financial Aid O ffice, failed to m ake sure that M s. Blount 
docum ented all leave taken. Furtherm ore, the directors failed to ensure that all of M s. Blount's 
leave taken was recorded on payroll docum ents. Our exam ination period was April 1992 
through Februar y 2(100, and there w ere three directors as follow s: M s. Cynthia Tarver - April 
1992 through Febru ary 1998, M s. Barbara Shaffer - M arch 1998 through Jur~e 1998, and 
M s. Debra Ephrom - July 1998 through February 2000. 

M s. Tarver failed  to ensure that 1,547.5 hours of leave taken by M s. Blount was recorded. 
M s. Shaffer, who served as acting director for four m onths, failed to ensure that 128.5 hours of 
leave taken by lVls. Blount was recorded. M s. Ephr om , director for a 20-m onth period, failed to 
ensure that 103.5 hours of leave taken by M s. Blount was recorded. 

M s. Blount stated that her im m ediate supervisor was the director of the Financial Aid Office and 
that the position was occupied by M s. Tarver, M s. Shaffer, and then M s. Epbrom . 

M s. Tarver s~atcd that she was not M s. Blomat's im m ediate supervisor. Furtherm ore:, M s. Tarver 
stated that she assum ed that she had com petent people who prepared  the payroll docum ents. 
Finally, M s. Tarver also stated that she had received the directives described above and that she 
failed to perform her adm inistrative duties as outlined in the directives and that she signed 
payroll docum ents w ithout review ing the docum ents. 

M s. Shaffer stated when she was acting director, she probably did not check M s. Blount's 
tim ecards before signing the payroll docum ents. She confirmed that, as acting director, she w as 
M s. Blount's im m ediate supervisor. 

M s. Ephrom stated that when she signed the payroll docum ents, she was under the impression 
that those who plepared the payroll had m ade certain that it was accurate. How ever, she agreed 
it was her responsibility to review the payr oll before signing it and that, as director, she was 
M s. Blount's im m ediate supervisor. It should be noted that starting in m id April 1999, 
M s. Ephrom appointed M s. Shaffer to m onitor M s. Blount's leave taken. 

The above actions indicate possible violations of one or m ore of the following 

R.S. 14:134, "M alfeasance in O ffice 

R.S. 14:138, "'Payroll Fraud" 

Article 7, Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution 
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Though the actions of the individuals listed in this report appear to substantiate tile elem ents of 

the laws listed previously, the actual determination as to whether individuals are subject to 
form al charge is at the discretion and determ ination of the district attorney. 

M anagem ent for Southern  University should im plem ent policies and procedures to ensure all 
em ployee leave taken is accurately accounted for, recorded, and deducted from em ployee leave 
balances. M anagem ent should ensure that employees are not paid for tim e not worked  when no 
available leave balance exists. By paying employees for tim e not worked, when accumulated 
leave is not available, m anagem ent places ti~e University in violation of Article 7, Section 14 of 
the Louisiana Constitution. In addition, the District Attorney for the N ineteentia Judicial District 
of Louisiana should review this inform ation and take appropriate legal action regarding these 
possible violations of state law , to include seeking restitution. 

EM PLO Y EES R ECEIVED CA SH 
FR O M  STUI)EN TS 

Former State Student Incentive Grant (SSIG) Coordinator, M s. Sharon Davis, and former 
Financial Aid em ployee, M r. Darrel Lee, stated that they accepted cash from students. 
M s. Davis stated that during her tenure as SSIG Coordinator, Septem ber 1992 to 
July 1998, she received an undeterm ined am ount of cash from at least ten students and 
possibly as m any as 50 students. M r. Lee stated that 11 students gave him approxim ately 
$2,250 in cash in exchange for the SSIG grant aw ards. In addition, M r. Lee stated that he 
applied for SSIG funds in the nam e of certain students without their knowledge and that 
M s. Davis was aware of this practice. 

SSIG grants consist of federal and state funds that are provided to academ ically qualified 
students to be used for educational expenses. Southern  University's Office of Financial Aid 
determ ines the actual am oun t of each student's award and establishes the number of recipients 
selected. The schedule of students requesting SSIG grants is prepared and sent to the Louisiana 
Office of Student Financial Assistance (OSFA) for approval. W hile M s. Davis was SSIG 
coordinator, grant checks m ade payable to the students were prepared by O SFA and sent to the 
University's O ffice of Financial Aid. 

CASII PAll) TO M R. LEE AND ]VIS. D AVIS 

Six students stated that they gave cash to M r. Lee in exchange for SSIG grant awards. One 
student staled that she gave cash to M s, Davis but did not say it was in exchange for SSIG grant 
proceeds. 

M r. Lee - Six students stated that they had an agreem ent w ith M r. Lee to give him 

(M r. Lee) approximately half of the grant proceeds in exchange for his help in getting the 
grant awards. This amounted to approximately $3,750. Information supplied by these 
six students is as follow s: 
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SSIG Checks Received bv the Six 8tuden 

Student received six checks: two in 1992 
two in 1993, and two in 1994. 
Student received three checks: 
two in 1996 and one in 1997. 
Student received one check in 1998. 
Studcnt received  one check in 1998. 
Student received one check in 1998. 
Student received one check in 1998. 

Total 

Cash 
Proceeds 

Total of Returned 
Checks to M r. t.ee 

$2,800 

1,700 
800 
800 
800 
800 

$1,400 

850 
400 
300 
400 
400 

M r. Lee disagrees with the students and stated that he received approximately $2,250 
flora l l students in exchange for helping them receive $13,400 in grants during the 
period Septem ber 1992 to June 1998. 

M s. Davis - One student stated that she gave M s. Davis $200 from the cash proceeds of 
her two 1996 SSIG checks which totaled $1,200. M s. Davis confirmed that the student 
had given her the cash. H ow ever, M s. Davis was unable to recall the nam es of the olher 
10 to 50 students who gave her cash nor w as she able to recall the am ounts they paid her. 

Several of tile students interview ed stated they did not prepare or sign the SSIG 
application/w orksheet. M r. Lee adm itted that, in m any of these cases, he completed the 
docum ents. M 1. Lee also stated that M s. Davis was aware of the application/worksheets which 
he had created because she saw him preparing them for several students. 

These actions indicate that one or m ore of the following laws m ay have been violated 

R.S. 14:67, "Theft" 

R.S. 14:134, "M alfeasance in O ffi ce 

18 U.S.C. ~641, "Embezzlement and Theft 

Though the actions of the individuals listed in this report appear to substantiate the elem ents of 

the laws listed above, the actual determination as to whether individuals are subject to formal 
charge is at the discretion and determ ination of the District Attorney and the United States 
Attorney. 

W e recom m end lhat m anagem ent implem ent policies and procedures to ensure that employees 
do not solicit or accept funds from students for doing that which they are being paid to do. 
Second, m anagem ent should review this inform ation to determ ine whether additional instances 
have occurred. M anagem ent should ensure that grants are aw arded only in accordance with 
grant award regulations. Finally, w e recom m end that the District Attorn ey tbr the N ineteenth 
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Judicial District of Louisiana and the United Stales Attorney for the M iddle District of Louisiana 
review this m atter and take appropriate legal action regarding these possible violations of state 
and federal law s, to include seeking restitution. 
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Bator~ Rouge, New Orleans, 
Shreveport/Bossier City 

LOUISIANA 

Oflqce ofthe President 
(225)771-4680 

SOUTHERN U NIVERSITY AND A & M  C OLLEGE SYSTEM 
BA'ION ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70813 

(225) 771-2011 

Dr. 1-)aniel G . Kyle, CPA, CFE 
Legislative A uditor 
1600 N orth Third Street 
P.O . Box 94397 
Baton Rouge, LA 70804-9397 

D ear D r. K yle 

Decem ber 12, 2000 

Fax Num ber 
(225) 771-5522 

I am  writing in reply to your investigative audit report on Southern University at 
Baton Rouge. The Southern University System appreciates the professional m anner 
in which your office conducted the audit that w as referred to you by our Intern al 
A udit Section. D r. Leon Tarver, System President, has recused him self from 
review ing this m atter because his w ife, M rs. Cynthia Tarver, is referenced in one of 
your findings. 

W e have interviewed the em ployees of the Financial A id office as well as other 
employees of the University. The Southern University System concurs with audit 
finding N o. 1, "Em ployees and Non-working students received work stu dy funds 
intended for needy students". W e also concur w ith your recom m endation that the 
D istrict A ttorn ey for the N ineteenth Judicial District of Louisiana and the United 
States A ttorney for the M iddle D istrict review this case and take appropriate legal 
action regarding possible violations in the use of state and federal funds. 

In addition, w e have advised the em ployees associated with the theft of these funds to 
consult w ith their attorn eys. W e have also notified them  that their em ploym ent w ith 
the University will be terminated. 

The Southern University System concurs in part w ith audit finding N o. 2, "M s. Ellois 
Blount was paid $44,772 in salary which she was not entitled to receive". M s. Blount 
was prim arily responsible for the initiation and com pletion of leave slip requests. It 
w as also the responsibility of her supervisor, the D irector of Financial A id, to approve 
her ]cave and certify the m onthly payroll. 

"An Equal Edusat~one, I Oppo~tumty tnstdutton 
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Our review indicated that there were payroll periods during which M s. Blount failed 
to subm it leave requests to the D irector of Financial A id upon her return  to w ork. 
There w ere also payroll periods in which the U niversity's Hum an Resources O ffice 
did not post the leave requests that w ere subm itted by the Office of Financial Aid. 

W e interview ed the three directors cited in your report for failing to perform their 
adm inistrative duties in certifying M s. Blount's payroll. Our review indicated that the 
directors should have taken a m ore direct and aggressive role in addressing M s. 
Blount's excessive absenteeism . W e did not find, however, that the three directors 
intentionally or know ingly certified incorrect payroll records. One of the directors, 
noting M s. Blount's excessive absences, wrote her rem oving her from  the position as 
D irector of the Student W ork Study program . A successor reassigned M s. Blount to 
other duties upon her retu rn to w ork. She also, on at least tw o instances, w rote pre- 
term ination letters to M s. Blount. The directors indicated they w ere not aw are that 
M s. Blounl had been advanced sick leave in 1997 because the request for advance 
sick leave w as approved directly by the H um an Resources O ffice. 

Further, the Southern University Hum an Resource Offi ce, which is responsible for 
tracking em ployee leave balances, m aintains a m anual system of recording leave 
balances. Payroll and leave registers, consequently, have not been provided to 
departm ental directors for the last few years. A new and autom ated Hum an 
Resources System  is presently being im plem ented by the Southern  University System  
to im prove the efficiency of m aintaining payroll and leave records of all U niversity 
em ployees. This system w ill provide accum ulated and used leave balances to the 
em ployees and supervisors each pay period. 

W e concur that the D istrict A ttorn ey for the N ineteenth Judicial D istrict of Louisiana 
should seek restitution of the funds paid to M s. Blount to which she was not entitled. 

W e concur w ith your audit finding N o. 3, "Em ployees received cash from stu dents." 
W e also concur w ith your recom m endation that the D istrict Attorney for the 
N ineteenth Judicial D istrict of Louisiana review this m atter and take appropriate legal 
action regarding these possible violalions of state law . 

,6"~OUTItEtI,~ ~rNIVt~ItSI'FY S YSTEM 
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The U niversity w ill also re-affi rm  and re-issue policies and procedures to ensure that 
em ployees do not solicit or accept funds from  students for the perform ance of their 
w ork duties. 

Our m anagem ent review of the operations of the financial aid offi ce is currently on 
going, as w e anticipate m aking additional recom m endations m  enhance the 
adm inistrative operations and efficiency of that offi ce. 

RS/rdc 

Sincerely, 

S OI~'TI-1E/RN l rNIVP?,I.~ I']W S YSTISM 25 
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SO UTH ER N UN IVER SITY" 
FEDERA L W O RK -STUDY PAYR O LL CH ECK S 

Exam ination Period - Spring Sem ester 1996 
Through Spring Sem ester 1999 

Aaron, N ikia Tim one 
Acey, Sabrina Dawn 
Andrus, M ia Angelle 
Ballard, N issan 
Beal, Karol 
Bell, Shirley Alexis 
Blackbtm l, Cerrissa 
Blount, Candiee 
Blount, Zenolia 
Bow ie, Teresa L. 
Brister, Gregory 
Brow n, Kenneth D . 

Davis, Quida 
D orsey,. Sylvester 
Fontenot, Em ily 
Fontenot, Jeanette 
Gatlin, Ruby 
Hall, M aurice D. 
Hall, M yoa 
Harden, Anyz 
1lines, Christopher 
ttooper, Orlan 
Ivy, N icolle 
Jackson, Andra 
Jackson, Jacquel 
Jackson, Tonika 
Jacobs, Kelly 
Jenkins, K yllie 
Jenkins, Orante' 
Jenkins, Sharhonda 
Jolm son, April 
Johnson, Ram a 
3ones, Robcrl 
Kindrick, Robin N . 

Colum n A Colum n B Colum n C Colum n D 

$3,757.85 
1,091.80 
2,765.55 
262.65 

1,524.40 
777.65 

4,480.50 
12,090.65 
13,601.35 
6,499.25 
1,735.55 
1,596.50 
5,559.00 
674.65 

4,027.30 
4,027.30 
2,275.40 
826.50 

1,745.50 
712.50 
798.00 
530.80 

1,297.25 
3,049.05 
2,605.90 
535.60 
803.40 

2,043.45 
5,001.85 
714.00 
896.10 
262.65 

1,555.30 
648.90 
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35. King, Corelta 
36. Lagarde, Jarrah 
37. Landry, Corey J. 
38. Lawson, Raharold 
39. Lewis, Donna 
40. Lilly, Ransom 
41. M anuel, Rom ney 
42. M atthew s, Crystal 
43. M cKanslry, lvory 
44. M errett, Quintin 
45. M iddlebrook, Janiese 
46. M olden, ttenry 
47. Oliver, Sherell 
48. Perkins, Gw endolyn 
49. Perry, Annlionette 
50. Perry, Sandra 
51. Rice, DeRonda 
52. Richardson, Ram on 
53. Robertson, Cassandra 
54. Saltus, Sim one 
55. Sm ith, Leonard 
56. Taylor, Device 
57. Taylor, Tim inirra 
58. Trasher, Vickey 
59. Ursin, I)errick 
60. W alker, Curtis 
61. W alker, Kevin 
62. W alker, Shedrick 
63. W ebber, Com ell 
64. W ells, Becky 
65. W hite, M elisha 
66. W illiam s, (hacie 
67. W ilson, M ichelle 

Tota 

Colum n A Colum n B Colum n C Colum n D 

$896.10 
1,153.60 
2,768.55 
3,615.30 
1,467.75 
2,842.80 
1,699.50 
262.65 
262.65 
262.65 
406.85 

3,109.90 
2,027.60 
2,036.55 
1,879.75 
3,996.40 
3,867.65 
2,631.65 
2,626.50 
412.00 
257.50 

1,735.55 
803.40 

1,065.00 
2,837.65 
6,633.20 
9,697.45 
1,009.40 
1,545.00 
4,430.30 
726.15 

3,002.45 
6,573.65 

$169,317.20 

1 
1 
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Colum n A :: Total of paychecks m ade payable to students for hours not worked. 

Colum n B = Num ber of students who did not qualify or who did not receive a W ork- 
Study award for one of m ore sem esters they received paychecks. 

Colum n C := N umber of students whose hours per their W ork-Study payroll vouchers 
conflicted w ith hours they w ur ked w ith outside em ployers. 

Colum n D =: Number of students who exceeded their W ork-Study award for one or m ore 

sem esters they received their checks. 
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Aaron, N ikia Tim one - W e did not interview M s. Aaron and her nam e m ay have been 
used w ithoul her knowledge, th us m aking her a victim of the schem e. Twelve paychecks 
totaling $3,757.85 were charged to two departments. Both supervisors stated that 
M s. Aaron did not w ork. Form er Financial Aid O ffice em ployee, M r. Darrel Lee, stated 
that he recruited M s. Aaron and collected $650.00 in cash from the proceeds of her 
paychecks. Furtherm ore, our investigation disclosed that there are hours claim ed as 
w orked on the student payroll vouchers that are in conflict with payroll records of an 
outside em ployer. 

Acey, Sabrina Dawn - M s. Acey stated that she w as recruited by M r. Robert Jones, 
form er W ork-Study student, Furtherm ore, she stated that she received three paychecks 
totaling $1,091.80 for which she did not work. M s. Acey also stated that M r. Jones and 
an unidentified female rode with her to a bank where she (Acey) endorsed and cashed the 
three paychecks at the instructions of th e unidentified fem ale. M s. Acey stated that she 
and M r. Jones were given $100 each and the unidentified fem ale kept the rem aining 
proceeds of the paychecks ($891.80). 

Andrus, M ia Angelle - M s. Andrus stated that M r. Robert Jones recru ited her and that 
eight paychecks were made payable to her totaling $2,765.55. She stated that she did not 
w ork. She stated th at M r. Jones presented her w ith two of these paychecks totaling 
$777.65. She said that she rode to the bank with M r. Jones where she endorsed and 
cashed the two paychecks at his instructions and received between $50 and $100. 
According to M s. Andrus, M r. Jones kept the rem aining proceeds. On a later date, 
M r. Jones took her to pick up a paycheck from M r. Richard W ilson, Departm ent of 
Intram ural em ployee. She stated she endorsed and cashed this paycheck and M r. Jones 
kept the proceeds. However, occasionally, M r. Jones gave her $10 to $25. She stated  she 
was unaware of the rem aining five paychecks totaling $1,987.90 that were m ade payable 
to her. 

Ballard, Nissan - W e did not interview M s. Ballard and her nam e m ay have been used 
w ithout her know ledge, thus m aking her a victim of the schem e. W e have no 
docum entation to support thai she did or did not receive a financial benefit. The 
supervisor of the departm ent from which her paycheck w as generated stated  she did not 
work. 

Seal, Karol - M s. Seal staled  she applied tor the Federal W ork-Study Program . She 
stated  she received a call from M s. Sandra Perry, form er W ork-Study student, who 
informed her (Beal) that she had a paycheck tbr her. M s. Seal stated she did not work for 
the paycheck. She inform ed us th at she had never m et M s. Perry before this date, 
M s. Beal stated she accompanied M s. Perry to a bank where she (Seal) endorsed and 
cashed the paycheck. M s. Perry gave her $100 and M s. Perry kept th e remaining 
proceeds fiom the $437.75 paycheck. M s. Beal stated she was unaware of the three other 
paychecks made payable to her totaling $1,086.65. 

Bell, Shirley A lexis - Our investigation revealed that M s. Bell, form er Financial Aid 
O ffice employee, added herself to a student payr oll, which was previously described on 
page 13 of this report. 
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Blackburn , Cerissa - M s. Blackburn stated she received 10 paychecks totaling $4,480.50 
for which she did not work. She stated that she kept half of the proceeds ($2,240.25) and 
gave M ~. Danel Lee the rem ainder. She confirm ed that she worked for an outside 
em ployer during som e of the hours claim ed as worked on her student payroll vouchers. 

Blount, Candice - W e did not interview M s. Blotm l and her nam e m ay have been used 
w ithout her know ledge, thus m aking her a victim of the schem e. M s. Candice Blount is 
the daughter of M s. Ellois Blount, form er Federal W ork-Study Program Coordinator. 
From M arcia 1997 through M arch 1999, M s. Candice Blount received 33 paychecks 
totaling $12,090.65 charged to four departm ents. Three departm ent supervisors stated 
that M s. Candice Blount did not w ork and w e have no evidence to indicate that she 
worked in the fourth departm ent. M s. Ellois Blount stated that M s. Candice Blount 
prepared the payroll vouchers from which these paychecks w ere issued and then took 
them to M s. M oses Dupre, Departm ent of Athletics employee, to sign. In addition, 
M s. Candice Blount's outside em ploym ent records from June 1997 through M arch 1990, 
indicated there w ere 620 hours w orked that w ere in direct conflict w ith hour s claim ed as 
worked on her student payrolls. 

Blom lt, Zenolia - W e did not interview M s. Bloun t, sister-in-law of M s. Ellois Blount, 
and her nam e m ay have been used w ithout her knowledge, thus m aking her a victim of 
the scheme. From January 1997 through August 1998, she received 24 paychecks 
totaling $13,601.35 charged to two departments. Both departm ent supervisors stated she 
did not w ork. Ten of the 24 paychecks totaling $8,342.80 w ere included on the 
Com m unity Service student payroll that M s. Ellois Blotmt stated she prepared. 
M s. Ellois Blount stated that M s. Zenolia Blount gave her half or $4,171.40 from the 
proceeds of the 10 paychecks. 

Bow ie, qeresa L. - M s. Bow ie stated she w as on academ ic probation and that she 
approached M s. Ellois Blount asking for help to return to school. M s. Bow ie stated that 
M s. Blount provided help and she retu rn ed to school. M s. Bow ie received a Pell grant, 
W ork-Study, and U W ORK--a chancellor awarded program . M s. Bow ie received 12 
W ork-Study paychecks from June 1996 through April 1997, for which she did not w ork. 
M s. Bowie stated that she gave M s. Blount the $6,499.25 from the paychecks. 
Furtherm ore, she agreed that she w orked w ith an outside em ployer during the tim e she 
received her student paychecks. 

Brister, (~regory - M r. Brister stated he received four paychecks totaling $1,735.55 for 
whiclh he did not w ork. He endorsed and cashed these paychecks and gave half of the 
proceeds to an unidentified m ale in the Financial Aid O ffice. M r. Darrel Lee identified 
him self as the person who recnfited M r. Brister and that he collected approxim ately 
$850.00 from the proceeds of M r. Brister's paychecks. 

Brown, Kenneth D . - W e did not interview M r. Brown and his nam e m ay have been used 
w ithout his know ledge, thus m aking him a victim of the schem e. From Septem ber 1997 
through Novem ber 1998, seven paychecks totaling $1,596.50 were m ade payable to 
M r. Brown and charged to the Departm ent of Intram ural student payroll. M r. Richard 
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W ilson stated that M r. Brown w as a non-w orking student that he added to his payroll at 
the request of M s. Ellois Blount. 

Davis, Quida - W e did not interview M s. Davis and her name may have been used 
w ithout her know ledge, thus m aking her a victim of the schem e. There are 11 paychecks 
m ade payaM e to M s. Davis that w ere charged to one departm ent. The supervisor of the 
departm ent stated that M s. Davis did not work. M r, Darrel Lee stated that M s. Davis was 
one of the students recruited by M s. Ellois Blount and that M s. Davis gave an 
undeterm ined am olm t of cash to M s. Blount. 

Dorsey, Sylvester - W e did not interview M r. D orsey and his nam e m ay have been used 
w ithout his kalow ledge, thus m aking him a victim of the schem e. M r. Dan-el Lee stated 
that he recruited M r. Dorsey and that M r. Dorsey did not work. M r. Lee stated  that he 
collected approximately $335.00 from the proceeds of M r. Dorsey's $674.65 paycheck. 

Fontenot, Em ily - M s. Fontenot stated that M r. Darrel Lee recru ited her an d that she 
received six paychecks totaling $4,027.30 for which she did not work. She stated  she 
gave M I. Lee half ($2,013.65) of the proceeds from her paychecks. M s. Fontenot 
confirm ed that there w ere hours claim ed as w orked on her student payroll vouchers that 
are in eonflict w ith her hours of work w ith an outside em ployer. 

Fonlenot, Jeanelte - M s. Fontenot stated that M r. Darrel Lee recruited her and that she 
received six paychecks totaling $4,027.30 for which she did not work. She stated that 
M r. Lee was given half ($2,013.65) of the proceeds from her paychecks. M s. Fontenot 
confirm ed that som e of the hours claim ed as worked on her student payroll vouchers are 
in c~m tlict with hours of work for an outside em ployer. 

Gatlin, Ruby - M s. Gatlin stated she did not w ork for the seven paychecks she received 
totalin~g $2,275.40. She stated  M r. Darrel Lee placed her on M r. Dupre's student payroll. 
M r. Lee agreed that M s. Gatlin kept the proceeds from the seven paychecks. 

Hall, M aurice D . - W e did not interview M r. Hall and his nam e m ay have been used 
w ithout his know ledge, thus m aking him a victim of the schem e. M r. Darrel Le e stated 
that M r. Hall was his cousin and that he caused him  to receive two paychecks totaling 
$826.50 for which he (Hall) did not work. M r. Lee stated  that Mr. Hall gave him 
approximately $250.00 from the proceeds of M r. Hall's paychecks. 

Hall, M yoa - W e did not interview M s. Hall and her nam e m ay have been used  w ithout 
her knowledge, thus m aking her a victim of the schem e. M r. Darrel Lee stated  that 
M s. M yoa Hall is the w ife of M r. M aurice ttall. M r. Lee further stated that he caused 
M s. ltall to receive four paychecks totaling $1,745.50 for which she did not work. 
M r. Lee also stated that he collected approximately $250.00 from the proceeds of her 
paychecks. In addition, there are hours claim ed as worked on her student payroll 
vouchers that arc in conflict w ith payr oll records of an outside em ployer. 

tlarden, Anya - W e did not interview M s. Harden and her nam e m ay have been used 
w ithout her know ledge, thus m aking her a victim of the schem e. W e have no 
docum entation to support that she did or did not receive a financial benefit. There are 
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two paychecks m ade payable to her that w ere generated from the Departm ent of 
Athletics' student payroll. M r. M oses Dupre stated that either M r. Lee or M s. Sharon 
Davis, form er Financial Aid O ffice em ployee, requested that he add this non-working 
student to his student payroll. 

Hines, Christopher - W e did not interview M r. Hines and his nam e m ay have been used 
without his knowledge, thus m aking him a victim of the schem e. W e have no 
docum entation to support that he did or did not receive a financial benefit. There w ere 
two paychecks m ade payable to M r. Hines that w ere generated from the Departm ent of 
Athletics' student payroll. M r. M oses Dupre stated that M r. Darrel Lee requested that he 
add this non-w orking student to his sludent payroll. 

Hooper, Orlan - W e did not interview M r. /-looper and his nam e m ay have been used 
w ithout his know ledge, thus m aking him a victim  of the schem e. W e have no 
docum entation to support that he did or did not receive a financial benefit. There are 
three paychecks m ade payable to M r. Hooper that were generated fiom the Departm ent of 
Intram ural student payroll. 

Ivy, N icolle - W e did not interview M s. Ivy and her nam e m ay have been used w ithout 
her know ledge, thus m aking her a victim of the schem e. W e have no docum entation to 
support that she did or did not receive a financial benefit. There are two paychecks made 
payable to M s. Ivy that are charged to the Departm ent of Intram ural student payroll. 
M r. W ilson stated that M s. Ivy did not work. 

Jackson, Andra - M s. Jackson stated that she w as recruited by M r. Darrel Lee and that 
she received seven paychecks totaling $3,049.05 for which she did nol work. She gave 
Mr. Lee half ($1,524.53) from the proceeds of her paychecks. In addition, there are hours 
worked for an outside employer that are in direct conflict w ith hours claim ed on her 
student payroll vouchers. 

Jackson, Jacquel - M s. Jackson stated that during the fall 1998 sem ester she received a 
call from M s. Sandra Perry who informed her (Jackson) that she had a paycheck for her. 
She stated that she had never m et M s. Perry before she received the call. M s. Jackson 
stated she did not w ork for the paycheck. Accordingly, she accom panied M s. Perry to a 
bank where she endorsed and cashed the paycheck. M s. Peny gave her $100 and 
M s. Perry kept the rem aining proceeds of the $437.75 paycheck. M s. Jackson stated she 
was tmaware that six other paychecks were m ade payable to her totaling $2,168.15. 

Jackson, Tonika - M s. Jackson stated she did not work for the $535.60 paycheck but kept 
approximately $335.60. She stated that M s. Ellois Blount and M s. Candice Blount 
received the benefit of the rem aining $200.00. In addition, there are hours claim ed as 
w orked on M s. Jackson's payroll vouchers that are in conflict w ith payroll records of an 
outside em ployer. 

Jacohs, Kelly - W e did not interview M s. Kelly and her nam e m ay have been used 
witl~otJ! her know ledge, thus m aking her a victim of the schem e. There are three 

paychecks made payable to M s. Kelly totaling $803.40. M r. Darrel Lee stated that he 
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recruited M s. Kelly, that she did not work, and that she gave him approxim ately $300.00 
from the proceeds of her paychecks. 

Jenkins, Kyllie - M s. Jenkins stated she was recruited by M s. Eliois Blount and that she 
did not work. M s. Jenkins stated that she received seven paychecks totaling $2,043.45 
and that she gave M s. Blount half ($1,021.72). 

Jenkins, Orante' - W e did not interview M r. Jenkins and his nam e m ay have been used 
without his knowledge, thus m aking him a victim of the schem e. From Jtme 1996 
through July 1998, there w ere 14 paychecks m ade payable to M r. Jenkins totaling 
$5,001.85. Outside employm ent records for M r. Jenkins during this period indicate there 
are -';71 hours w orked that are in direct conflict w ith hours claim ed as w orked on student 
payrolls. M s. Sharon Davis stated she was related to M r. Jenkins and that she requested 
M r. Richald W ilson to add this non-working student to his student payroll. M r. W ilson 
confinlled this statem ent. M s. Davis did not state who shared in the proceeds of the 
paychecks. 

Jenkins, Sharhonda - M s. Jenkins stated that M s. Ellois Blount explained to her that she 
was in a financial bind and asked if she (Jenkins) would help her in exchange for 
$150.00. Accordingly, a $714.00 paycheck was issued in M s. Jenkins' nam e. 
M s. Jenkins stated that she did not w ork for the paycheck. M s. Jenkins stated M s. Blount 
gave her $150.00 and that she followed M s. Blount's instructions and deposited the 
$714.00 paycheck in M s. Blount's personal bank account. 

Johnsol~, April - W e did not interview M s. Johnson and her nam e m ay have been used 
w ithout her know ledge, thus m aking her a victim of the schem e. W e have no 
doct~m ent~lion to support that she did or did not receive a financial benefit. There are 
three paychecks m ade payable to M s. Johnson charged to the Departm ent of Intram ural 
student payroll. Mr. Richard W ilson stated she did not work and that she (Johnson) was 
added  to his payroll at the request of M s. Ellois Blount. 

Johnson, Ram a - W e did not interview M s. Johnson and her nam e m ay have been used 
w ithout her know ledge, thus m aking her a victim of the schem e. W e have no 
docum entation to support that she did or did not receive a financial benefit. The 
supervisor of the departm ent to which the paycheck was issued  stated M s. Johnson did 
not w ork in his departm ent. 

Jones, Robert - Our investigation revealed (previously described on page 13 of this 
report) that Mr. Jones was a participant in this scheme. 

Kindrick, Robin N . - W e did not interview M s. Kindrick an d her nam e m ay have been 
used w ithout her know ledge, thus m aking her a victim of the schem e. W e have no 
docum entation to support that she did or did not receive a financial benefit. The 
supervisor of the departm ent to which the paychecks are charged stated that M s. Kindrick 
did not w ork. 
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King, Coretta - W e did not interview M s. King and her nam e m ay have been used 
w ithout her know ledge, thus m aking her a victim of the schem e. W e have no 
docum entation that she did or did not receive a financial benefit. There were three 
paychecks m ade payable to M s. King charged to the Departm ent of Intram ural student 
payroll. M r. Richard W ilson stated that M s. King did not work in his departm ent and that 
M s. King was added to his payroll at the request of M s. Ellois Bloont. 

I,agarde, Jarrah - W e did not interview M s. Lagarde and her nam e may have been used 
w ithout her knowledge, thus m aking her a victim of the schem e. W e have no 
docum entation to support that she did or did not receive a financial benefit. There are 
four paychecks m ade payable to M s. Lagarde that w ere charged  to two departm ents. 
Both department supervisors stated she (Lagarde) did not work. 

Landry, Corey J. - W e did not interview M r. Landry and his nam e m ay have been used 
w ithout his know ledge, thus m aking him a victim of the schem e. W e have no 
docum entation to support that he did or did not receive a financial benefit. There are 
seven paychecks totaling $2,768.55 made payable to M r. Landry and charged to the 
Departm ent of Athletics' student payroll. M r. M oses Dupre stated M r. Landry did not 

work and that he (Landry) was added to his payroll at the request of either M r. Darrel Lee 
or M s. Sharon Davis. 

Law son, Raharold - W e did not interview M r. Lawson and his nam e m ay have been used 
without his know ledge, thus m aking him a victim of the schem e. There are nine 
paychecks totaling $3,615.30 payable to him and charged as follows: one paycheck 
charged to Com puter Science, seven charged to Intram ural, and one charged to 
Com m unity Service. All three departm ent's supervisors stated M r. Law son did not work. 

Ms. Ellois Blount stated that M r. Lawson gave her half ($422.30) from the $844.60 
paycheck that w as charged to the Com puter Science student payroll. M r. Richard W ilson 
stated that he (W ilson) added M r. Lawson to his student payroJl at the request of 
M s. Ellois Blount. 

Lew is, Donna - M s. Lew is stated that M r. Da1Tel Lee tried to recruit her, but she refused 
to becom e part of this schem e. M s. Lew is stated she was unaware of four paychecks 
totaling $1,467.75 payable to her. Our investigation revealed that the four checks were 
deposited in the personal bank account of M r. Lee's parents. 

Lilly, Ransom - W e did not interview M r. Lilly and his nam e m ay have been used 
w ithout his know ledge, thus m aking him  a victim of the schem e. M r. Darrel Lee stated 
lhat he rec~aaited M r. Lilly and that he did not w ork. There w ere six paychecks m ade 
payable to M r. Lilly totaling $2,842.80. M r. Lee stated  that M r. Lilly gave him 
approximately $1,420.00 from the proceeds of his paychecks. 

M anuel, Rom ney - M r. M anuel stated that M r. Robert Jones recruited him and that he did 
not work for the five paychecks m ade payable to him . M r. M anuel stated that M r. Jones 
gave him two paychecks totaling $777.65. Furthermore, M r. M aun el stated that he used 
approximately $200.00 to $300.00 for the benefit of Mr. Jones and that he (M anuel) kept 
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the rem ainder. M r. M anuel stated he was unaware of the other three paychecks totaling 
$921.85 m ade payable to him . 

M atthews, Crystal - W e did not interview M s. M atthew s and her nam e m ay have been 
used without her know ledge, th us m aking her a victim of the schem e. W e have no 
docum entation to support that she did or did not receive a financial benefit. How ever, the 
supervisor of the departm ent to which her paycheck was charged stated M s. M atth ew s 
did not work. 

M cKanstry, Ivory - W e did not interview M s. Ivory  and her nam e m ay have been used 
w ithout her know ledge, thus m aking her a victim of the schem e. W e have no 
docum entation to support that she did or did not receive a financial benefit. The 
supervisor of the departm ent to which the paycheck w as charged stated M s. M cKanstry 
did 11ol w ork in that departm ent. 

M erretl, Quintin - W e did not interview M s. M errett and her name may have been used 
without her know led ge, thus m aking her a victim of the schem e. W e have no 
docum entation to support that she did or did not receive a financial benefit. The 
supervisor of the departm ent to which the paycheck was charged stated M s. M errett did 
not work in that departm ent. 

M iddlebrook, Janiese - W e did not interview M s. M iddlebrook and her nam e m ay have 
been used w ithout her know ledge, thus m aking her a victim of the schem e. W e have no 
docum entation to support that she did or did not receive a financial benefit. The 
supervisor of the departm ent to which her paycheck was charged stated that 
M s. M iddlebrook did not w ork in that departm ent. 

M olden, Henry - W e did not interview M r. M olden and his nam e m ay have been used 
w ith out his know ledge, thus m aking him a victim of the schem e. There are nine 
paychecks payable to M r. M olden totaling $3,109.90. M r. Darrel Lee stated that he 
recruited  M r. M o/den and that he (Molden) did not work. M r. Lee stated that 
M r. M olden gave him approximately $500.00 from the proceeds of M r. M olden's 
paychecks. 

Oliver, Sherell - M s. O liver stated that M r. Darrel Lee was a cousin to her husband, 
M r. Herm an O liver. M r. Lee recroited her and she did not w ork for the tbur paychecks 
totaling $2,027.60 that were m ade payable to her. She stated that M r. Lee brought her 
th ree paychecks totaling $1,080.00 and she kept the proceeds of those paychecks. There 
was another paycheck m ade payable to her that totaled $947.60 that she was unaware of 
until she ta lked to her husband. M r. Herm an O liver stated  his wife did not know that 

M r. Lee had brought him the $947.60 paycheck, which he (Oliver) cashed. In addition, 
M s. Sherell Oliver's outside em ploym ent records indicated there w ere hours w orked that 
were in direct conflict w ith the hours per her student payroll vouchers. 
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Perkins, Gw endolyn - W e did not interview M s. Perkins and her nam e m ay have been 
used w ilhout her know ledge, thus m aking her a victim  of the schem e. M r. Darrel Lee 
stated he recruited M s. Perkins and she did not work. From her seven paychecks totaling 
$2,036.55, M r. Lee stated that she gave him a small amount of the proceeds. 

Perry,. Anntionette -. M s. Anntionette Perry, daughter of M s. Sandra Perry, stated sire 
w orked  and that she received three paychecks which she gave to her nrother. These three 
paychecks were charged to tw o departm ents. How ever, the supervisors of the 
departm ents stated that she did not work in either of their departm ents. The description 
on two of her payroll vouchers and indicated that M s. Perry had w orked identical hours 
on the sam e dates in the two departm ents. 

Perry, Sandra - Our investigation determ ined that M s. Perry participated in the schem e as 
described on page 12 of this report. 

Rice, I)eRonda - W e did not interview M s. Rice and her nam e m ay have been used 
w ithout her know ledge, thus m aking her a victim  of the schem e. From October 1996 
through M arch 1999, thirty paychecks totaling $11,670.30 were made payable to her and 
were charged to two departm ents: the Financial Aid O ffice and the Departm ent of 
Intramural. Seven of those 30 paychecks totaling $3,867.65 were charged to the 
Departm ent of Intram ural. M r. Richard W ilson stated he placed M s. Rice on the payroll 
at the request of M s. Ellois Blount. M r. W ilson further stated that M s. Rice had no 
assigned duties and that she did not w ork. He also stated that he personally gave 
M s. Rice her paychecks. In addition, our investigation disclosed that there were hours 
claim ed as w orked on M s. Rice's payroll vouchers that w ere in conflict w ith the payroll 
records of her outside em ploym ent. 

Richardson, Ram on - W e did not interview M r. Richardson and his nam e m ay have been 
used without his knowledge, thus making him a victim of the scheme. W e have no 
docum entation to support that he did or did not receive a financial benefit. Front October 
1998 through M arch 1999, six paychecks totaling $2,631.65 were made payable to him 
and charged to two departm ents. The supervisors of those two departm ents stated that 
M r. Richardson did not w ork. 

Robertson, Cassandra - M s. Robertson stated she was recruited by M r. Darrel Lee. She 
stated that she did not work and that the eight paychecks she received totaling $2,626.50 
were shared  equally w ith M r. Lee. She confirm ed that she could not have w orked the 
hours claim ed on the payr oll vouchers for the first quarter of 1999 because she was 
w orking tbl an outside em ployer. 

Saltus, Sim one - W e did not interview M r. Saltus and his nam e m ay have been used 
w ithout his know ledge, thus m aking him a victim of the schem e. W e have no 
docum entation to support that he did or did not receive a financial benefit, ttowever, the 
supervisor of the departm ent to which his paycheck was charged stated that he did not 
work. 
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55. Sm ith, Leonard - M r. Sm ith stated that he w as not eligible for the W ork-Study Program 
and did no w ork for the paycheck he received. M r. Sm ith also stated that he does nol 
rem ember who gave him the W ork-Study paycheck am ounting to $257.50. 
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Taylor, Device - W e did not interview M r. Taylor and his nam e m ay have been used 
without his know ledge, thus m aking him a victim of the schem e. M r. Darrel Lee stated 
that he recnaited M r. Taylor and that M r. Taylor did not w ork for the four paychecks 
totaling $1,735.55 made payable to him . M r. Lee stated that M r. Taylor gave him 
approximately $850.00 from the proceeds of the four paychecks. 

Taylor, Tim inirra - W e did not interview M s. Taylor and her nam e m ay have been used 
w ithout her know ledge, thus m aking her a victim of the schem e. W e have no 
docum en~tion to support that she did or did not receive a financial benefit. ]'here were 
three paychecks m ade payable to M s. Taylor that w ere charged to the Departm ent of 
Intram ural. M r. Richard W ilson stated he added the non-w orking student to his payroll at 
the request of M s. Ellois Blount. 

Trasher, V ickey - W e did not interview M s. Trasher and her nam e m ay have been used 
w ithout her know ledge, thus m aking her a victim of the schem e. W e have no 
docum entation to support that she did or did not receive a financial benefit. Her three 
paychecks were charged to one departm ent and the supervisor of that departm ent stated 
that M s. Trasher did not w ork. 

Ursi:n, DeH'ick - W e did not interview M r. Ursin an d his nam e m ay have been used 
w ithout his know ledge, thus m aking him a victim of the schem e. W e have no 
doct~m en~tion to supporl that he did or did not receive a financial benefit. There are six 
paychecks totaling $2,837.65 payable to him charged to two departments. The 
supervisors of the two departm ents stated he did not work. 

W alker, Curtis - M s. Ellois Blotmt sta ted she recruited M r. W alker, falsified his sign-in 
sheets and payroll vouchers, and shared equally in the proceeds of his nine paychecks 
totaling $6,633.20. M r. W alker agreed that M s. Blount made it possible for him to 
receive th e paychecks and that he gave cash to M s. Blount. In addition, M r. W alker's 
hours w ith an outside em ployer conflict w ith hours claim ed as w orked on his student 
payrolls. 

W alker, Kevin - M s. Ellois Blotmt stated that she falsified M r. W alker's sign-in sheets 
and payroll vouchers and that they shared equally in the proceeds of his 13 paychecks 
totaling $9,697.45. M r. W alker confirm ed that M s. Blount put him on the student payroll 
to receive the paychecks and that he gave cash to M s. Blounl fiom the proceeds of his 
paychecks. According to M r. W alker, at the tim e he was being paid through the student 

payroll, he also had a full-time job with an outside employer and said it would have been 
im possible for him to have w orked the eight hours per day described on his student 
payroll vouchers. 
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W alker, Shezlrick - W e did not interview M r. W alker and his nam e m ay have been used 
w ithout his know ledge, thus m aking him a victim of the schem e. W e have no 
docum entation to support that he did or did not receive a financial benefit. There were 
four paychecks totaling $1,009.40 payable to M r. W alker and charged to the Com m unity 
Service student payroll. The supervisor of the departm ent stated he did not w ork. 

W ebber, Com ell - W e did not interview M r. W ebber and his nam e m ay have been used 
w ithout his know ledge, thus m aking him a victim  of the schem e. W e have no 
docum entation to support that he did or did not receive a financial benefit. There w ere 
five paychecks totaling $1,545.00 charged to two departments. Both department 
supervisors stated that M r. W ebber did not w ork. 

W ells, Becky - M s. W ells stated that M s. Sharon Davis set her up to receive 14 
paychecks totaling $4,430.30. M s. W ells stated she did not work. M s. W ells stated she 
gave M s. Davis between $20 and $50 fi'om each paycheck, although she may not have 
given m oney to M s. Davis from every paycheck. 

W hite, lvlelisha - W e did not interview M s. W hite and her nam e m ay have been used 
w ithout her know ledge, thus m aking her a victim of the schem e. W e have no 
docum entation to support that she did or did not receive a financial benefit. There w ere 
two paychecks totaling $726.15 charged to one department. The supervisor stated 
M s. W hite did not w ork. 

W illiam s, Gracie - M s. W illiam s stated that she was recruited by M r. Dan'el Lee and that 
she received nine paychecks totaling $3,002.45 for which she did not work. She gave 
M r. Lee half ($1,501.22) of the proceeds from her paychecks. Our investigalion 
disclosed that hours w orked w ith outside em ployers w ere in direct conflict with hours 
worked  on M s. W illiam s' payroll vouchers. 

W ilson, M ichelle - W e did not interview M s. W ilson and her nam e m ay have been used 
w ithout her know ledge, thus m aking her a victim of the schem e. M r. Richard W ilson 
stated that he placed his niece, M s. M ichelle W ilson, on his student payroll and that she 
did not w ork. He stated he received no m oney for this. From Septem ber 1996 through 
April 1999, M s. W ilson received 21 paychecks totaling $6,573.65. In addition, there are 
hours w orked for outside em ployers that are in direct conflict w ith hours w orked on 
M s. W ilson's payroll vouchers. 
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L egal Provisions 

The following legal citations are referred to in the Findings and Recom m endations section of this 

report: 

R.S. 14:67 provides, in part, that theft is the m isappropriation or taking of anything of 
value which belongs to another, either w ithout the consent of the other to the 
m isappropriation or taking, or by m eans of fraudulent conduct, practices, or 
representations. 

R .S.. 14:72 provides, in part, that forgery is the false m aking or alteling, w ith intent to 
defraud, of any signature to, or any part of, any writing purporting, to have legal efficacy. 

R.S. 14:134 provides, in part, that m alfeasan ce in offi ce is com m itted when any public 
officer or public employee shall (1) intentionally refuse or fail to perform any duty 
lawfully required of him, as such officer or employee; (2) intentionally perform any such 
duty in an unlawful manner; or (3) knowingly permit any other public officer or public 
em ployee, under his authority, to intentionally refuse or fail to perform  any duty law fully 
required of him or to perform any such duty in an unlaw ful m anner. 

R .S. 14:138 provides, in part, that payroll fraud is com m itted when any public offi cer or 
public em ployee shall carry, cause to be carried, or perm it to be carried, directly or 
indirectly, upon the em ploym ent list or payroll of his office, the nam e of any person as 
em ployee, or shall pay any em ployee, w ith know ledge that such em ployee is receiving 
paym ent or com pensation for services not actually rendered by said em ployee or for 
services grossly inadequate for such paym ent or com pensation. 

A rticle 7, Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution provides, in part, that except as 
otherwise provided by this constitution, the funds, credit, properly, or things of value of 
the stale or of any political subdivision shall not be loaned, pledged, or donated to or for 
any person, association, or corporation, public or private. 

18 U.S.C. ~641 provides, in part, that embezzlement and theft is committed when 
whoever em bezzles, steals, purloins, or knowingly converts to his or the use of another, 
or w ilhout authority, sells, conveys or disposes of any record, w ~ucher, m oney, or thing 
of wdue of the United States or any property m ade or being m ade under contract for the 
United Stales or any departm ent or agency thereof; or whoeve~ receives, conceals, or 
retains the sam e w ith intent to convert it to use or gain, knowing it to have been 
embezzled, stolen, purloined or converted. 
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18 U.S.C. ~666 provides, in part, thai theft concerning programs receiving federal funds 
occurs when an agent of an organization, state, local, or Indian tribal govenam ent or any 
agency thereof embezzles, steals, obtains by fi'aud, or otherwise intentionally m isapplies 
property tha! is valued at $5,000 or more and is owned by or under control of such 
organization, state, or agency when the organization, state, or agency receives in any one 
year period, benefits in excess of $10,000 under a federal program involving a grant 
contract, or other form of federal assistance. 


